ADDENDUM NUMBER 4
TO RFP FOR PARKING FACILITY MANANGEMENT

CITY OF MIWAUKEE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

OFFICIAL NOTICE 129

1. What is the status of the new residential development adjacent to the 4th & Highland garage and any related parking commitments? [RFP p. 1, Section 2a]

The City has made no parking commitments for the development, but has no other relevant information at this time.  

2. Will the contractor be responsible for the City’s 5th garage? [RFP p. 1, Section 2a]

No, the contractor will only manage the four facilities described in the RFP.
3. Will any vehicles be stored in the parking facilities? [RFP, p. 2, Section 2b]
Sixty (60) Milwaukee Police Department (MPD) vehicles are stored at MacArthur Square for which the Department of Public Works (DPW) is paid $50 per vehicle per month.  In addition, one City truck, one sweeper/scrubber and one salter/plow are stored in parking spaces at MacArthur Square.  Other equipment (e.g., snow plows) is stored in nonrevenue-generating areas of the facilities (e.g., caged areas).
4. Several questions were received about monthly parkers.  These questions have been consolidated herein for the purposes of preparing a uniform response.  [RFP, p. 2, Section 2c]

City Responses to Monthly Parker Questions

	Vendor Question
	City Response

	a. How many monthly parkers are in each facility?
	a. MacArthur Square has 1,329, 2nd/Plankinton has 308, 4th & Highland has 215 paid and 151 free, and 1000 North Water has 1,090 monthly parkers; 45 complementary cards are issued to staff, security, contractors doing concrete and elevator repairs.

	b. How many monthly parker rate codes are there?
	b. There are six different rate codes for monthly parkers.

	c. How many complementary monthly access cards are there?
	c. For the purposes of submitting a proposal, vendors should assume that there are 10 complementary monthly access cards for City staff for City functions (e.g., inspections and repairs).

	d. Do the access cards provide access to adjoining buildings?
	d. The Hampton Inn’s validation system allows hotel guests to use their room key card for access at the 2n/ & Plankinton garage, but no other cards enable access to other buildings.

	e. Will the City or contractor control the monthly parker database?
	e. The contractor will control the monthly parking database, but the City will work with the contractor and Amano McGann to explore the best ways to use relevant system features.


5. How many transient tickets are generated annually? [RFP, p. 2, Section 2c]
The City does not have this data, but vendors may be able to project estimates using revenue data and average length of stay assumptions (see Question No. 14).
6. What is the current parking management contract? [RFP, p. 2, Section 2d]
The City sent all interested vendors of the current parking management contract. The Request for Bids that is incorporated by reference in the contract is attached. 

7. Did the $948,000 of direct operating costs incurred by the current contractor in 2010 include outsourced security costs? [RFP, p. 3, Section 2d]
Yes.

8. Several questions were received about the revenue control system.  These questions have been consolidated herein for the purposes of preparing a uniform response.  [RFP, p. 4, Section 2e]

City Responses to Technology-Related Questions

	Vendor Question
	City Response

	a. Is high-speed internet connectivity available for each garage?
	a. DSL service is available for the Amano McGann system functions (e.g., transmitting data), but not for other internet services (e.g., emails).

	b. How are the Amano McGann access groups defined?
	b. The current groups are organized by facility, patron program (e.g., Bucks Pass) or time slot (e.g., 24-hour access or 4am-6pm), but the City does not believe that this information is required in order to prepare a responsive proposal.

	c. What are the Amano McGann software serial and build numbers?
	c. The serial numbers are: 3806 (Debit Card Access, Express Parc, Count/Monitor, Revenue, Business Alerts, Accounts Receivable, MT Server and Integrated Mapping Software), 3807 (Hotel Software), 3808, 3809 (Web Client III Software) and 4797 (CC Server Software).  The build number is 17c.


9. Who are the current contractor’s subcontractors? [RFP p. 5, Section 2f]

The current contractor has subcontracts with American Security Guards (security), White Glove Window Cleaners (window cleaning), Spic and Span (rug cleaning), Nexus Pest Control (pest control), Tennant (sweeper maintenance) and Waste Management (trash removal).  The City does not have copies of any subcontracts.
10. What “security monitoring equipment” is used? [RFP page 5, Section 2f] 

The contractor’s current subcontractor installed a security monitoring system with a wand that is used to time-stamp the location of security guards at given locations in each garage (date, time and location are recorded).  It should be noted that, in preparing proposals, vendors are not limited to the current security system.
11. Are there any planned upgrades or construction projects?  [RFP p. 5, Section 2f]
Every year, the facilities are inspected by City engineering staff to determine the need for capital improvements and capital project funding must be approved by the Common Council. The following projects are anticipated over the next five years, but may be modified, deferred or eliminated, subject to Council approval:
· 2012 – Slab and membrane repairs at 2nd & Plankinton;
· 2013 – Concrete repairs, membrane replacement and pavement marking at 4th and Highland;
· 2014-15 –Slab and membrane repairs at MacArthur Square; and
· 2016 – Painting at 2nd & Plankinton and 4th & Highland.    
Each year, about $250,000 is reserved for smaller, unplanned capital repairs.         

12. Who attended the pre-proposal conference?  [RFP p. 7, Section 3e]

The list of pre-proposal conference attendees (sign-in sheet) is attached.

13. How shall the proposed compensation data be presented? [RFP, p. 9, Section 3e] 
Each vendor’s proposed compensation data should be presented as follows:

	Compensation Item
	Year 1
	Year 2
	Year 3

	Reimbursable operating costs
	
	
	

	Personnel costs
	$
	
	

	Service costs
	
	
	

	Supply costs
	
	
	

	Miscellaneous costs
	
	
	

	Total operating costs
	$
	
	

	Other itemized costs
	
	
	

	Insurance & performance bond costs
	$
	
	

	Other
	
	
	

	Total other itemized costs
	$
	
	

	Annual management fee
	$
	
	

	Annual profit (percent of sum of total operating costs, other itemized costs & management fee
	%
	
	


Vendors should note that insurance and performance bond costs, which were listed as potential examples of reimbursable costs in the RFP, should be itemized separately.  If there are any other costs for which vendors are uncertain of their classification, they should be shown as other itemized costs.  Such costs will be discussed during contract negotiations and classified as reimbursable or non-reimbursable costs.

The City understands the vendors will have to make certain assumptions and judgments to develop their proposed compensation, but the City will evaluate each vendor’s ability to formulate, assess and project such cost factors.  Unlike a conventional bid process, this RFP calls for a process by which the City will review many factors in addition to the affordability of services.
14. For the purpose of estimating ticket supply costs, how many tickets are issued annually (e.g., dispenser and chaser tickets)?  If chaser tickets are used, does the City own a “Mass Validator?” If the City does not own a “Mass Validator,” how are such transactions handled?  [RFP, p. 9, Section 3e]  
The City’s responses to these questions are presented below:

· Annual dispenser tickets – in 2010, 500,325 dispenser tickets were issued (including 361,875 at MacArthur Square, 55,400 at 4th & Highland, 47,850 at 1000 North Water and 35,200 at 2nd & Plankinton);  

· Annual chaser tickets – in 2010, 75,360 validation tickets were issued (including 62,125 at MacArthur Square, 800 at 4th & Highland, 12,400 at 1000 North Water and 35 at 2nd & Plankinton);  
· Mass validator – two companies that issue validations lease an Amano McGann electronic validator from the City for a monthly fee;
· Mechanical validator – 10 other companies use free mechanical validators from the City (they must purchase ink pads for the mechanical validators); and

· Other transactions – some companies sponsoring ad hoc events at a garage purchase validation tickets for their guests for those events; as these transactions do not involve electronic validators, the contractor issues a validation ticket for the negotiated parking rate plus a fee of $0.25 per validation ticket (no refund is given for the $0.25 fee for unused validation tickets).
Since the current contractor oversees all of the above activities, the City has limited information.  However, the City believes that vendors have sufficient information to prepare and submit their proposals.
15. Numerous other questions were received about costs and compensation.  These questions have been consolidated herein for the purposes of preparing a uniform response.  [RFP, p. 9, Section 3e and RFP, p. 12, Section 4d]

Per the RFP, the City will employ five evaluation criteria to evaluate the proposals and value is only one of those criteria.  The evaluation committee has assigned the following weights to these factors:  firm capabilities (30 percent), project team qualifications (10 percent), service approach (30 percent), innovation (5 percent) and value (25 percent). Value, which includes cost factors, is weighted less significantly than it would be under a conventional bid approach.  
City Responses to Other Cost-Related Questions
	Vendor Question
	City Response

	a. What is the anticipated number of special events for staff planning purposes?
	a. While special events and demand vary, vendors should use the following special event assumptions for the proposal:

· Bradley Center – 60 Bucks & Marquette games
· Bradley Center – 65 other games (e.g., minor league hockey)
· Bradley Center – 12 large concerts
· Riverside Theater (2nd/Plankinton) – 60 small concerts
Vendors may estimate special event costs on a per event basis, but should document any assumptions.

	b. What are the current staff’s pay rates, titles and years of service? 
	b. The City does not believe that this information is required in order to prepare a responsive proposal.

	c. How should security-related costs be calculated? How many guards and hours will be needed for on-foot patrols?
	c. Security costs should be calculated using your best judgment.  The current staffing (i.e., 1 24/7 mobile guard, one foot guard 12am – 4am each day at the 2nd Street garage) should not necessarily be considered definitive.

	d. Are operating supplies reimbursable?
	d. The City does not provide consumables, but reimburses the current contractor for certain operating cost items (e.g., light bulbs and custodial supplies).  

	e. Should dry cleaning costs for uniforms be included in the costs?  
	e. Dry cleaning costs will be considered reimbursable costs and should be included in the cost proposal.

	f. What are some “minor equipment repair” costs that will be considered reimbursable costs?
	f. Examples of such costs are system repair costs not caused by contractor negligence nor covered by the Amano McGann service contract (e.g., cost to repair a gate broken by a patron). 

	g. How are waste removal costs handled?
	g. The contractor provides this service and dumpsters, but the City reimburses the associated costs.

	h. Are costs related to maintaining PCI compliance reimbursable?
	h. The City will bear all PCI compliance costs relevant to the City’s revenue control system, but the contractor will bear all PCI compliance costs for using a non-City, non-exclusive website for processing monthly parking sales.

	i. How are back office data processing costs handled?
	i. The contractor provides this service (e.g., payroll processing), but the City reimburses the associated costs.

	j. Are permit costs reimbursable?
	j. Yes.

	k. Would the City be willing to consider insurance premiums and deductibles as reimbursable costs during contract negotiations?  
	k. Yes, while the City believes that certain insurance costs, such as deductibles, should be minimized, it will address the issue during contract negotiations.  For purposes of the proposal, itemize insurance and performance bond costs separately from reimbursable costs and management fees.

	l. What are the contractor overhead costs in detail?
	l. The City does not have this information, but vendors should have sufficient experience to identify, project and itemize such costs in their respective proposals.

	m. What is the current contractor’s profit and loss statement?
	m. The City does not have this information, but vendors should not need this information to prepare their proposals.


In providing the cost data requested in the RFP, vendors should keep in mind that the City is interested not only in the affordability of cost proposals, but their thoroughness and reasonableness as well.  To that end, rather than dictate to vendors precisely what such costs should contain, the City is asking vendors to demonstrate their ability to assess potential operating costs.
16. Will the City provide operating advances for the contractor? [RFP page 13, Section 4d]
The City will not provide the contractor with an operating advance (e.g., working capital), but will provide a change fund to ensure adequate currency and coins for providing change to the public.  The current change stocked in each 1) pay station is      $ 2,500 and 2) pay-in-lane is $800.
17. When is the annual performance bond due?  [RFP page 17, Section 5d]
The contractor will furnish a performance bond no later than contract execution and renew it every year thereafter.

18. Will the “facility liability” requirement be covered by Garagekeeper’s Legal Liability (GKLL) coverage? [RFP page 17, Section 5d]
Yes, but all insurance issues will be deliberated during contract negotiations and final coverage decisions will be subject to City risk management approval.

19. Will a business license or permit be needed to operate the garages?  If so, by when and how much?  [RFP page 18, Section 5e]
The contractor is required to obtain a parking business license every two years under the general licensing provisions of the City’s code (the cost is $50).
20. How will the City’s EBE participation goal for this contract be measured?  [RFP page 18, Section 5e]  
The City’s EBE participation for this contract will be measured based on total contract costs (e.g., up to 18 percent of total compensation, including all compensation components, such as reimbursable costs, management fee and profit).
21. Are there any other taxes or surcharges for parking? [RFP page 19, Section 5f]

The 6.25% state sales tax is the only sales tax assessed on parking fees; there are no local sales taxes for parking.  The City is not aware of any other surcharges or special taxes assessed on parking fees.
22. Will the nightly vehicle inventory comprise a simple vehicle count or a full recording of vehicle data, including license plate numbers?  What is the typical number of vehicles recorded?  [RFP page 22, Exhibit B, Section 1.2]
The current contractor’s security subcontractor counts vehicles in each garage on a nightly basis, but does not do a full license plate inventory.  However, the City will entertain alternative inventory methods.  The typical inventory count is unknown.
23. What are the current parking validation programs? [RFP page 23, Exhibit B, Section 1.5]
The City has authorized numerous parking validation programs, some with discounts and others with full pay back provisions.  A list of the some significant validation and discount programs, including names, rates and restrictions, is provided below.
In an average month with much variation, there are about 30 invoices sent out to various entities for validations.  An average month might result in invoices totaling approximately $32,000 of parking charges.

	Names
	Rates
	Restrictions/Other Comments

	Museum Members
	$6 paid at exit by member (4,225 avg transactions p/mo)
	Nothing more billed to museum

	Milw Police to Court
	100% actual usage (1,457 avg transactions p/mo)
	Billed back monthly

	Hampton Inn Hotel  guests
	$14.50 per day for guests only (951 avg transactions p/mo)
	Billed to hotel monthly

	Milw Police to Jail
	100% actual cost (450 avg transactions p/mo)
	Billed to MPD   monthly

	Reinhart et al Law Firm for clients
	100% actual usage (342 transactions p/mo)
	Billed to law firm monthly


24. In what form are the pre-paid parking credentials for the Bucks season ticket holders issued (e.g., chaser tickets, manual stickers or date-sensitive keycards)?  [RFP page 23, Exhibit B, Section 1.5]
The current contractor issues validated tickets specific to Bucks season ticket holders who purchase them with their season tickets.  However, the City is willing to work with the contractor and Bradley Center to develop more efficient means. In 2010, 22 Bucks season parking passes were issued (i.e., 6 full-season, 4 half-season, and 2 “click & pick game” passes for MacArthur Square, 3 half-season and 1“click & pick game” passes for 4th and Highland, and 1 full-season, 3 half-season, and 2 “click & pick  game” passes for 1000 N Water).
25. Several questions were received about facility security.  These questions have been consolidated herein for the purposes of preparing a uniform response.  [RFP page 24, Exhibit B, Section 2.4]

City Responses to Facility Security Questions

	Vendor Question
	City Response

	a. What are the pay rates for security officers and supervisors?
	a. Security is sub-contacted by the current contractor.

	b. Are the security personnel union or non-union?
	b. The City does not have this information, but does not consider it relevant for preparing a proposal.

	c. How many training hours must a security officer have before being assigned to a garage?
	c. It is the City’s understanding that the current security subcontractor requires security guards to have 16 hours of training before being assigned to a garage.

	d. What is the work schedule for assigned security personnel?
	d. The City does not believe that this information is required in order to prepare a responsive proposal. 

	e. What are the current uniform requirements for security officers?
	e. The uniforms should meet comply with customary standards for security guards serving comparable facilities.


26. Several questions were received about facility maintenance.  These questions have been consolidated herein for the purposes of preparing a uniform response.  [RFP page 24, Exhibit B, Section 2.5]

City Responses to Facility Maintenance Questions

	Vendor Question
	City Response

	a. Can the City’s sweeper/scrubber be used for maintaining all facilities?
	a. The sweeper-scrubber at MacArthur Square is typically not transported to other facilities, but there is a sweeper at each of the other garages. 

	b. When are the facilities power-washed?
	b. The other garages are power-washed about once per year by the current contractor.

	c. How should the contractor handle refuse removal?  Does the City provide this service?
	c. Since the City does not provide dumpsters or waste removal service, the contractor will be responsible for refuse removal, a responsibility it may choose to fulfill via contract.

	d. How is snow removal handled?
	d. The contractor uses its own staff for snow removal, but may decide to subcontract this function.  Snow removal for sidewalks surrounding 1000 N Water are handled by the commercial condominium association.

	e. If contractor employees do snow removal, what are the job duties of the Maintenance Support position?
	e. The City does not believe that this information is required in order to prepare a responsive proposal.

	f. Will the City provide snow removal equipment (plow and salt spreader)?
	f. The City provides one truck with a rubber blade plow and salter, three walk-behind salt spreaders and three hand-push snow blowers, but does not permit deicing at the garages.


27. Through which bank accounts will the contractor handle revenues and expenses?  [RFP page 25, Exhibit B, Section 3.2]
All cash and checks received by the contractor for daily parking transactions are picked up on a daily basis, Monday through Friday, by a City-provided armoured courier and deposited directly into a City depository account.  Monthly parker revenues collected by the contractor using a non-exclusive website will likely be received first by the contractor and then transferred to the City’s designated account on a schedule determined by the City.
Operating costs paid directly by the City (e.g., Amano McGann service contract costs) shall be paid by the City through City-controlled bank accounts.  All operating expenses paid directly by the contractor (e.g., ticket stock), regardless of whether or not they are reimbursable, shall be controlled through a contractor-furnished bank account. The final determination of which operating expenses are reimbursable will be made during contract negotiations. 
28. How will the City and contractor handle credit card processing? [RFP page 25, Exhibit B, Section 3.3]

City Responses to Credit Card Processing Questions

	Vendor Question
	City Response

	a. How will revenue control system transactions be handled?
	a. All credit card transactions processed via the revenue control system shall be handled through the City’s Elavon merchant credit card processing platform, but the processing of other credit card transactions (e.g., monthly sales) may vary.

	b. Will the City provide the merchant ID number?
	b. Point of sale (POS) transactions using the revenue control system will require a City-issued merchant ID number, but the contractor will provide a merchant ID number for monthly parking transactions processed via a non-exclusive website.

	c. If the contractor provides the merchant ID number, will the City ensure PCI compliance?
	c. The contractor shall ensure PCI compliance for monthly parking sales hosted on a non-exclusive website, but the City will work with the contractor to ensure PCI compliance for monthly parking sales hosted on an exclusive website.


  Note:  Exclusive website = website hosted solely for the City of Milwaukee.
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